
CLASS ACTIONSETTLEMENT AND RELEASE

"This Class Action Settlement Agreement and Release (“Settlement Agreement” or

“Agreement”), .is made and entered into by, between, and among Plaintiff Bryan Hicks

(“Plai-ntiff’fi, on behalf of himself and the Settlement Class, as defined in paragraph 34 below, on

the one hand, and. Defendant California Water Service Company (“Defendant” or “Cal Water”) on.

the other.

Plaintiff and.Defendant (collectively, the “Parties”) enter into this Agreement to effectuate.

a full and final settlement and preclusive judgment resolving all Claims brought or that could have

been, brought against Cal Water'based upon the facts pleaded in Hicks 12. California .WaterService

(Santa Clara Sup. Ct. Case No. 21CV376394) and all claims based on or related thereto. This

Agreement is intended to fully and finally compromise, resolve, discharge, and settle the Released

Claims, as defined and on the. terms set fOrtlh below, and to the fill] extent reflected herein, subjeat.

to the approval of the Court.

I. RECITALS

'WHEREAS, on February- 23, 2021., Plaintiff Bryan Hicks filed aputative class action in

Santa Clara Superior Court against Cal Wateralleging variOus wage-and—hour violations, Hicks v.

California Water Service (Santa Clara Sup. Ct. Case. No. 21'CV3‘76394);

WHEREAS, on. June 17, 2021., the Superior Court for the County of Santa Clara, Hon.

Sunil B. Kulkarni, issued an order" staying the Action pending the completion of mediation;

”WHEREAS, on February 2-53, 2022, the [Parties participated in a virtual mediation session

with eXperienced professional mediator, J effrey' Krivis, and, in preparation for the mediation,

engaged in extensive discovery, including the deposition of Plaintiff and exchanging information,

documents, and'volum'inous data, which enabled a thorough evaluation of the claims, and the likely

outcomes, risks, and expense of pursuing. litigation;

WHEREAS, following the mediation, a propoSal Was discussed that would reSolvef all, of

the claims pled. in the Action, including the PAGA claims added to the Action by amendment of

the operative complaint-3 



WHEREAS, the Parties desire to fiilly, finally, and forever settle, compromise, and 

discharge-all disputes and claimsthat. existbetween them arising from the factual allegatiOns that 

underlie the Action concerning any and all, claims. asserted therein, including the alleged: failure: 

to include additional remuneration when calculating overtime wages in violation of Labor” Code. 

§§ 510 and 1198; failure to pay meal period premiums at the regular rate: of pay insviolation of 

Labor" Code §§ 512 and 226.7” and‘the applicable. Industrial Welfare Commission (“IW C”) Wage 

Order; failure to pay rest break premiums at. the regular rate of pay" in violation of Labor Code § 

226.7 and. the applicable .IWC 'Wage Order; failure. to pay the minimum wage as required by Labor 

Code -§-§ 15194, 1197,, and 1197.1; failure to pay all wages timely upon separation of employment 

in. violation of Labor Code §§ 201—202; failure to timely-pay earned wages. during employment in 

violation of Labor Code § 204;. failure to provide complete and accurate Wage. statements in 

violation of Labor Code -§_ 226-; failure to maintain accurate. and complete payroll records showing 

hours Worked daily and wages paid, in violation of Labor Code: § 1174; failure to reimburse and 

indemnify employees for losses and expenditures in violation of Labor" Code §§__. 2800. and 2802; 

violations of Califomia ”Business &' Professions Code § 17200 et seq.; and claims for .PAGA 

penalties under __Labor Code § 2698 et seq. To achieve a full and complete. release of Cal water 

(and the “Released Parties” as defined inthis Agreement) of such disputes and claims, the Plaintiff; 

on behalf of himself and Participating Settlement Class Members was defined in this Agreement, 

acknowledges that this Settlement Agreementis- intended to fully and finally resolve the Released 

Claims (as definedin'this Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, on March .3, 2022, Plaintiff 'BryaaiCks provided written notice to the Labor 

and 'Workforce- Development. Agency (“LWDA”) giving notice of his intent to purJSue a 

representative action pursuant to PAGA, on behalf of himself and the State of "California, as well 

as on behalf of a proposed. group of aggrieved employees (”PAGANotice"), 

'WHEREAS, on February 8, 2023, the Court granted Plaintiff leave, pursuant to the Parties” 

stipulation, to file a First Amended Class Action Complaint for Damages & Enforcement Under 

Private Attorney General Act, California § 26.98,— Er Seq. (“First Amended Complaint” or 



“Operative Complaint”), adding a cause of action under PAGA, and, on. February 24, 2023, 

Plaintiff filed the First Amended Complaint. 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2022, the Parties agreed to. a settlement and release. of the. Action. 

according to a Memorandum of Understanding.- 

'II. DEFINITIONS 

In addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Settlement Agreement, capitalized terms 

used in this Settlement Agreement shallhave the meanings set forth below: 

1.. “Action” means the putative class action captioned Hicks 12. California Water 

Service, Santa. Clara Connty Superior Court, Case. No. 21CV3 763 94. 

.2... “Allegedly Aggrieved Employees” means all enrrent and former nonrexempt. Cal 

Water er‘nplOyees who were emp10yed by Cal Water between February 23, 2020, and August 8',- 

2022, inclusive- 0 

3. “Attorneys” Fees and Costs” means attorneys’ fees sought by Class Counsel for 

litigation and. resolution of the. Action, and all reasonable costs incurred. by Class Counsel in the 

Action Subject to review and. approval by the Court, Class Counsel. mayrequest attorneys" fees 

of not more. than thirty—five percent (35%) of the Gross Settlement Fund to Class Counsel for its 

litigation and resolution of this Action (“Attorneys" F ees”), and reimbursement of litigation 

reasonable costs and expenses in. an amount. not. to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 

($25,000.00), which shall be paid from the Gross, Settlement Fund as set forth in Paragraph 42 

below. 

4. “Class Counsel” means‘Edwin AiWazian, Arby AiWaZian, Joanna Ghosh, and Brian, 

-J-. St. John of Lawyers for Justice, PC, who will seek to be appointed counsel for the Class. 

5. “Class List” means a-comple‘te. list. of all Settlement Class Members and. Allegedly 

.Aggrieved. Employees that. Cal, water will. diligently and. in good faith compile from its records- 

and provide to the Settlement Administrator within thirty ('3 0) calendar days after entryof an order 

granting Preliminary Approval of this Settlement. The Class List will be formatted in‘Mic-r‘osoft. 

OffiCe Excel. and will include eaCh Class Member’s. full name; most recent mailing address and 



telephone number contained. in Cal Water’s personnel records; Social Security number; dates 

worked as hourly-paid or non—exempt employees of Defendant in California during the Class 

Period; information sufficient to calculate the number of 'WOrkweeks that each Class Member 

worked during the Class Period and the. number of Workweeks that each Allegedly Aggrieved 

Employee Worked during the PAGA Period according to Cal Water’s. records; and any other 

information needed to CaICulate Individual Settlement Payments. The. Class List will be treated as- 

confidential information. The Class List will only be shared. with the Settlement Administrator. 

The Class List will not be shared with Class Counsel. 

6. “Class Notice” means the Notice of Class Action. Settlement, to be;- sent via First- 

Class US. Mail. to the Class, following preliminary approval, in substantially" the form that is 

attached hereto as “Exhibit A.” The Class Notice will notify Class Members of the Settlement and 

explain the basic terms of the Settlement. 

7,. “Class Period” means the period from February- 23, .2017 through August 8, 2022. 

8'. “Class Representative Enhancement Payment” means the amount. to. be paid to 

Plaintiff, Subject to final approVal by the Court, in recognition of his effort and workin prosecuting 

the Action .on behalf of ' Settlement Class Members, and for their general release of claims under 

Civil Code seetion 1542. Subject to theCourt granting final approval of this Settlement Agreement 

and subject to the: exhaustioli of any and all appeals, Plaintiff will request Court approval of a, Class- 

Representative Enhancement Payment .of Eight Thousand Dollars ($8,000.00) to Plaintiff Bryan 

Hicks. 

9. “Class Settlement” means the settlement and resolution of all. Released Class 

Claims. 

10. “Gem” or “Santa Clara Superior Court” means the Superior Court :of‘ California 

for the County of Santa Clara. 

1.1. “Defendant’s Counsel” means Gibson, Dunn &. Crutcher LLP. 

12. “Effective Date” means the later of: (i) if no timelyobj'ections are filed, .or if ”filed, 

are withdrawn prior to final approval, the date upon which the Court enters an order granting final 



approval of the Settlement Agreement; or (ii) if timely objections are filed. and not withdrawn, then 

either five (5) calendar days firom the final resolution of any appeals "timely filed. or the expiration 

date of the time for filing or 'notiCing any such appeals, provided that the Settlement is finally 

approved. ' 

13. “Final Approval” means the entry of fan order that the Plaintiff and .Cal Water will 

jointly seek" from the Court, and the entry of Which shall. reflect the Court’s Judgment finally 

approving the Settlement Agreement, disposing of all issues raised in this Action by way of 

judgment in confonnity with Cralifomia Rules of CourtRule 3.769, and awarding and ordering the 

"payment of all required amounts pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

14. “Final Approval Hearing” means the hearing that is to take place after the entry of 

the Preliminary ApproVal Order and after the date the Settlement Administrator mails Class- 

Notices to Settlement Class Members for purposes of: (i) entering Final Approval; (ii) determining 

Whether the Settlement-Agreement shall be approved as fair, reasonable, and "adequate; (iii) ruling 

upon an, application by Class COunsel for Attorneys” Fees and. Costs and Plaintiff’s Class 

Representative Enhancement Payments; (iv) ruling upon the Individual. Settlement Payments, 

Settlement. Administration Costs, PAGA Settlement amount; and (v) any other appropriate or 

necessary actions. 

‘15. “Funding Date” means sixty (:60) calendar days after the Effective Date. 

'16,. “Gross Settlement Fund” means the non-reversionary amount of :Two- Million One 

Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($2,150,000.00), to be paid. by Cal Waterin full satisfaction of 

allfReleased Claims, which includes all‘lndividual Settlement Payments- to Participating Settlement 

Class Members, Participating Settlement Class 'Members’ shares of appliCable payroll tax 

payments (including FICA, F UTA, and SDI contributions), the Class Representative Enhancement 

Payments to Plaintiff, the PA'GA Settlement Amount fer release .of all Private Attorneys" General 

Act claims, Attorneys" Fees: and Costs, and Settlement AdministratiOn Costs. In addition to the 

amount provided as part of the Gross Settlement Fund, Cal. Water agrees to pay the emplOyer’s 

share of applicable payroll tax payments (”Employer’s Payroll Tax Payments”). The EmplOyer’s 



Payroll Tax Payments shall be calculated by the; Settlement Administrator and determined based 

on the Individual Settlement Payments to Participating Settlement Class .Members dispersed as 'W- 

.2 payments. The Gross Settlement Fund amount is based on Defendant’s. representation that there 

are approximately One Hundred Eighty Thousand. (180,000) Werkweeks worked by Settlement 

Class Members. during the period from February- 23,2017, to February 235, 2022. In theevent ”that- 

number of qualifying 'Work‘weeks as calculated by the Settlement Administrator during the Class 

Period exceeds One Hundred Eighty Thousand (180,000) by more than five percent (5%) (i.e., 

exceeds. 189,000), Cal Water shall increase the Gross SettlementFund on a pro-raid basis equal 

to the percentage increase in the number of Workweeks worked by the Settlement Class members 

above five percent (5%). 

17. “Individual Settlement Payment” means each Participating Settlement. Class 

Member’s respective share of the Net Settlement Amount. 

18. “Individual ,PAGA. Payment” means each Allegedly Aggrieved Employee’s 

respective share of the 25%, portion of the PAGA Settlement Amount allocated to Allegedly 

Ag‘grieved Employees. 

19. “Net Settlement Amount.” means the portion of the Gross Settlement Fund 

remaining after deducting the Class Representative Enhancement Payments, Attorneys” Fees and 

Costs, Settlement Administration Costs, and the 'P'AGA Settlement Amount. The entirety of the 

Net SettlementA-mount will be. distributed to Participating Settlement Class _Mem_ber_s pro rate, 

on a per Workweek basis. There will .be no reversion of the Net Settlement Amount to. Cal. Water. 

20. “Netice of Objection” means a Settlement Class Member’s valid and timely written 

objection to the. Settlement Agreement. For the Notice of Objection to be valid, it must. include: 

(i) the case name and number of the Action; (ii) the objectOr’s full name, signature, address, last 

four digits of his/her Social Security'number, and. telephonernumber; (iii) a clear written statement. 

of all. grounds for. the objection accompaniedby any legal. support for such objection; (iv) copies 

of any papers, briefs, or other documents upon which the objection is. based; and (v) a. statement 

whether the objector. intends to appear at the Final Approval Hearing. Any Settlement Class 



Member who doesnot submit a timely written- objection to the. Settlement, 0r Who fails to otherwise 

comply with the specific and technical requirements .of' this paragraph, Will be foreclosed from 

objecting to the Settlementand. seeking any adjudication or review of the Settlement, by appeal or 

other'Wise. 

20. “PAGA Settlement” means the settlement and resolution of all Released PAGA 

Claims. 

21. “PA-GA Settlement Amount” means the, amount that will be allocated to penalties 

under PAGA to be distributed to the. Allegedly Aggrieved Employees and the Labor and 

Workforce Development Agency (“LWDA”) in connection with resclutiOn of the PAGA claims 

in the Action. Seventy-Five Percent (75%), Or One Hundred Thirty-One Thousand TWO. Hundred 

Fifty Dollars ($131,250.00), of the PAGA Settlement Amount will be paid to the California 

LWD'A (“LWDA Payment”), and Twenty-Five Percent (25%), or Forty—Three Thousand Seven 

Hundred Fifty" D011ars (5343,75 0.00), of the PAGA Settlement Amount will be distributed. to 

Allegedly Aggrieved Employees .011. a pro. rata basis based on their respective number of 

Workweeks between February 23, 2020,, through August 8,. 2022 (“PAGA Period”). 

22. “Participating Settlement Class Members” means all. Settlement Class Members 

who do notsubmit timely and valid. Requests for Exclusion. 

23. “Preliminary Approval” means entry of the Court order granting preliminary 

approval of this. Settlement Agreement. 

24. “Qualified Settlement Fund” means a fund, account, or trust satisfying the 

requirements of 26 CPR. § 1.468B-1_, established by the Settlement AdministratOI for the purpose 

of distributing the Gross Settlement Fund according to the terms- of this Settlement Agreement. 

25.. “Release: Period” means the period from February 23, 2017 through the date, of 

Final Approval or December 1, 2022, Whichever is earlier. 

26.. -“Re1eas.ed Claims” means the Released Class Claims and the Released PAGA 

Claims, collectively. 



27. “Released Class Claims” means all claims under state, federal, or local law during. 

the Release Period thatwere or could have been alleged based'upon the-facts pleaded in the Action, 

including: (a) failure. to provide compliant wage statements Violations and/or failure to. keep 

requisite "payroll. records (Labor C0d61§§ 226 and 1174); (b) failure to pay. minimum wages. (Labor 

Code §§ 1194, 11.97, and 1197.1)"; (0) failure to pay overtime. wages (Labor Code §g§ 510., and 

1198-); ((1) failure to provide compliant meal periods and aSsociated premiums and compliant rest. 

periods and associated premiums (Labor Code § § 226.7, 51.2, and IWC Wage Order No. 4); (e) 

failure to reimburse employees. for necessary business expenditures (Labor Code § 2.802); (f) to 

timely pay wages during employment. (Labor Code §' 204); (g) failure to timely pay wagesupon 

termination (Labor Code §§'- 201 and.203-2--); and (h) all claims asserted through California Business 

& Professions Code §§ '1 7200 et seq. arising out of the aforementioned claims during the Release 

Period.— 

28'. “Released PAGA. Claims” means all claims under PAGA. for penalties during the 

,PAGA Period. thatiwere or could have-been alleged based upon the facts pleaded in the Action and. 

the PAGA Notice, fOr alleged violations of CalifOrnia Labor Code sections .201, 202, 20.3.1, 204, 

226(a), 226.7, 510, 512(a), 551, 552, 558, 1174(d), 1 194, 1197, 1197.1, 1198,2800 and 2802, and 

Industrial Welfare CommissionWage Orders. Plaintiff’s LWDA Notice is attached as Exhibit B 

to this Settlement Agreement. 

29". “Released Parties” means Cal ”Water and any of its former and present parents, 

subsidiaries, holding companies, investors, siSter and. affiliated companies, divisions, and other 

related entities, as well as its and their Success0rs, pr‘edecesSors, shareholders, officers, directors, 

partners, assigns, agents, employees, principals, heirs, administrators, attOrneys, vendors, 

accountants, auditors, consultant's, fiduciaries, insurers, reinsurers, employee benefit plans, and 

representatives, both individually and in their official capacities, past or present, as Well as all 

persons acting by, through, under, or in concert with any of these persons. or entities, including, 

but not limited to, entities. holding ownership interests in Cal. Water. 



30. “Request for Exclusion” means a timely letter Submitted by a Settlement Class. 

.Member indicating a request to be excluded from the Settlement. The Request for Exclusion must: 

(1) contain the case name and number of the Action; (ii) set forth the full name,- a‘ddres's, and. 

telephone number of ' the Settlement Class Member requesting exclusion; (iii) 'be signed by the 

Settlement- Class Member; (iv) be returned by mail to the Settlement Administrator at the specified 

address, postmarked on or "befOre theResponse Deadline; (V). clearly state that the Settlement Class 

Member does not wiSh to be included. in the Settlement. The date of the postmark on the return 

mailing envelope on the submission will be the eXclusive means to. determine Whether a Request 

for Exclusion has been timely submitted. 

31. “Response Deadline” means the deadline by Which Settlement Class Members must 

postmark to the Settlement Administrator Requests for Exclusion, Notices of Objection, or 

workweeks Disputes. The ResponseDeadline will be forty-five (45) calendar days from the. initial 

mailing of the Class Notices by" the Settlement Administrator, unless the forty-fifth (45th) day falls 

on a Sunday or federal holiday, in which case the Response Deadline will, be extended to the next 

day on which the US. Postal Service is open. The Response Deadline may also be extended by 

express written agreement between Class Counsel and Defendant’s Counsel. Under no 

circumstances, however, will the Settlement Administrator have the authority to extend the 

Response Deadline. In the event that a. Class Notice is. re-mailed to aClass- Member, the Response 

Deadline. for that Class Member shall be extended. by fifteen (15) calendar days. 

32. “Settlement AdministrationCosts”.means the reasonable fees and expenses payable 

fi‘om the Gross Settlement Fund to the Settlement, Administrator, subject to Count approval, for 

' adininistering this Settlement, including, but not limited to, printing, "distributing, and tracking 

Class Notices and other documents. for this Settlement; calculating estimated amounts per 

Settlement Class: Member and Allegedly Aggrieved Employees; tax reporting, including issuing 

of 1099 and W-Z IRS forms and all. required tax. reporting, filings, withholdings, andsremittances; 

distributing the LWD‘A Payment, Gross Settlement Fund and Attorneys " Fees and Costs, and 

providing neceSsary reports and declarations, and other duties and responsibilities set: forth herein 



to process this Settlement, as requested. by the Parties. The. Parties have agreed to allocate up to 

Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00) to Settlement Administration Costs. The Settlement 

Administration Costs will be paid from the Gross Settlement Fund. In, the event the allocated 

Settlement Administration Costs exceed the actual costs incurred by the Settlement Administrator, 

the difference shall be a part oftheNetSettlement-Amount and. distributed among the Participating 

Settlement Class Members. 

33.. “Settlement Administrator” means Phoenix Class: Action Administration Solutions, 

which the Parties have agreed to, subject to. approval by the Court fOr the purposes of administering 

this Settlement. The Parties each represent that they do not have any financial interest in the 

Settlement Administrator or otherwise have a. relationship with the Settlement Administrator that 

could create a conflict of interest. 

34. “Settlement Class- Member(s)” or “Settlement Class”- .means all current and fOrmer 

hourly non-exempt Cal Water. employees who Worked for Cal Water in California. from February 

23, 2017., to and including August 8., 2022. 

3-5. “Workweek(s)” means the number of weeks each Settlement- Class Member 

worked fOr Defendant as an hourly:paid .or' non-exempt employee in. California. during the Class 

Period, which will be calculated by the Settlement Administrator by taking: the. total number of 

any calendar weeks that the: Settlement Class Member Worked at least one: day during the Class 

Period. Each Settlement Class Member. shall be credited with at least one (1) Workweek. 

.36. “Workweeks Dispute” means a. written diSpute submitted by a Settlement Class 

Member indicating a dispute of the number of WOrkweeks attributed to the Settlement Class 

Member in. the Class Netice. The WorkWeeks Dispute must: (i) contain the case name and 

number of the Action; (ii) be signed by the Settlement Class Member; (iii) contain the full name, 

address, telephone number, and the last‘tfour di gits- of the Social Security Number ofthe diSputing 

Settlement. Class Member; (iv) clearly state that the Settlement Class Member disputes the 

number of WorkWeeks credited to him or her and what he or she contends is "the correct number 

to be- credited to him or her; (v) include information and/or attach documentation. demonstrating 



that the number of Workweeks that he .or' she centends Should be credited to him Or her are 

correct; and (vi) be returned by mail to the Settlement Administrator at the specified address, 

postinarked on. or before the Response Deadline. The date of the po stm'ar‘k on the return mailing 

envelope will be the exclusive means. to determine whether a Workweeks Dispute has been 

timely” Submitted. 

III. TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

Plaintiff, on behalf of himself and the Settlement Class, and Cal. Water agree as follows: 

37. Class Certification. For the purposes of this Settlement. only, the Parties stipulate 

“to the. certification. of the. following Class: all Current and former .hourly'non-exempt Cal Water 

employees who Worked for Cal Water in California from February 23, 2017, to and including 

August 8, 2022. 

38-. (£s Certificatio‘p fer Settlement Purposes Only. The Parties stipulate to class 

Certification of any claims not yet certified for purposes of implementing the Settlement only, and 

in no way is that an. admission by Cal Water that class. certification is proper under Section 3.82 of" 

the califomia Code of Civil Procedure or any” other rule or law permitting certification of a class. 

The Settlementiwill not be admissible inany proceeding, other than-proceedings necessary to seek 

Court. approval of the Settlement, as evidence that (i) a class or collective should be certified as 

Plaintiff has proposed for any claims, including but not limited to any currently: «non—certified 

claims; (ii) the Action :should proceed on a. representative basis pursuant to PAGA; or (iii). Cal, 

Water is liable: to Plaintiff or any other individuals he claims to represent in the Action in 

connection. with any claims. that were or Could have. been asserted in the Action, except. as- is 

necessary for obtaining Preliminary Approval and Final. Approval of the Settlement. 

39. Preliminary ‘ Approval Motion. The Parties agree to present the Settlement for 

Preliminary Approval, and conSent to continuedjurisdiction if Preliminary Approval: is granted, to 

Judge Sunil B. Kulka‘mi in the Los Angeles Superior Court, andPlaintiff further agree to endeavor 

in good faith. to file a _Motion fer Preliminary ApproVal, including all executed and necessary 

exhibits, within thirty (30) calendar days of executing this Settlement-Agreement. 



40. Fundfig of the Gross SettlementlFun'd and Employer’s. Payroll TMayments. "Cal 

Water. will make a one-time deposit of the Gross Settlement Fund of Two Million One Hundred 

Fifty Thousand Dollars ($2,150,000.00) plus Employer’s Payroll Tax Payment into a Qualified 

“Settlement Fund to. be established by the Settlement Administrator .in exchange for the promises 

set forth in this Settlement Agreement, including the releases by the Participating Settlement Class. 

Members, Allegedly Aggrieved Employees, and Plaintiff for. the iRele'aSed. Claims. The-Individual ' 

Settlement Payments; and Individual PAGA Payments are not 'being' made for any other purpose 

and will not be construed as compensation for purposes. of determining eligibility- jfor any health. 

and. welfare benefits or unemployment compensation. After the Effective Date, the Gross 

Settlement. Fund will be used to pay: (i) Individual Settlement Payments; (ii) the PAGA Settlement 

Amount; (i‘ii)“the Class. Representative Enhancement Payment; (W) the Attorneys’ Fees and Costs ; 

and (V) Settlement Administration Costs. Cal Water will deposit the Gross. Settlement Fund and. 

the Employer’s Payroll Tax Payment by the Funding Date. 

41. Non—Reversionag Settlement. Participating Settlement Class Members. are entitled. 

to one. hundred percent (100%) of the Net Settlement Amount, to be distributed as- outlined in 

paragraph 46. No portion of the Net Settlement Amount will revert to .or be retained by'Cal Water. 

Cal Water maintains no reversionary‘ right to any portion of the Net Settlement Amotmt, including. 

any increase in the Net settlement Amount resulting from areduction in the Class Representative 

Enhancement Payment, Attorneys’ Fees and Costs, the PAGA Settlement Amount, and the 

Settlement Administration Costs. If there are any timely submitted. opt cuts or a. reduction in the 

Class; Representative Enhancement Payment, Attorneys’ Fees and Costs, the PAGA Settlement 

Arnount, and/Or the Settlement Administration Costs, the Settlement Administrator shall. 

proportionately increase the Individual Settlement Payments for each Participating Settlement. 

Class Member so that the amount actually distributed to. Participating settlement-Class Members 

equals one hundred percent (100%) of the corresponding Net Settlement Amount. 

42. Attomevs" Fees and Costs. Class Counsel shall apply to the Court for attorneys" 

fees of not more than thirty—five percent (35%) of the Gross Settlement Fund (i.e., Seven Hundred 



Fifty—Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($752,500.00) ifthe Total Settlement Amotmt is 

$2, 1 50,000.00), plus. reasonable costs and expenses incurred, not to exceed Tummy-Five Thousand 

Dollars ($125,000.00) subject to Court approval. These amounts, will cover any and all work 

performed and any and all costs incurred by Class- Counsel in connection with the litigation of the 

Action, including without limitation all Work performed and costs incurred to date, and all work 

to be performed and all costs to be incurred in connection with obtaining the Court’s approval of 

this Settlement Agreement, including. any objections raised and any appeals necessitated by those 

objections. Class Counsel shall be. solely and legally responsible for correctly” characterizing- this 

compensation for tax purpOses andfor paying any taxes" on the amounts received. The Settlement. 

Administrat0r~(and not Cal Water) shall issue an IRS Form 1099 to Class Counsel reflecting the 

.Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. Defendant agrees not to oppose Class Counsel’s reasonable request 

for an. award of attorneys" fees and costs in the amounts set ferth in this paragraph. With respect 

to the Attorneys’ Fees and Costs to Class Counsel, the Settlement Administrator may purchase 

an annuity'to utilize United States Treasuries and bonds or other attorney fee deferral vehicles, 

for Class; Counsel. Any additional expenses :for the use of attorney fee deferral vehicles by the 

Settlement Administrator shall be paid separately by" Class Counsel and shall not be included 

within the Settlement Administration Costs. Defendant and Defendant’s counsel shall not be 

liable for any expenses- associated with the use of an. attorney fee deferral vehicle by the 

settlement AdministratOr- Any portion of the Attorneys’ Fees and "Costs" not awarded to Class 

Counsel will remain part of the Net Settlement Amount for distributiOn to Settlement ClaSs 

Members. 

43. Clis RepresentatiVe Enhancement Payment. In exchange for general releases of 

all. known and unknown claims that he may have against Cal Water and Released Parties based on 

his employment with Cal Water (including a waiver of claims under Civil Code section 1542), and 

in recognition of .his service to the class and efforts and work in prosecuting the Action, Plaintiff 

shall apply for a Class Representative Enhancement Payment of. Eight Thousand Dollars 

($8,000.00). The Class RepresentatiVe Enhancement Payment will be paid from the Gross 



Settlement: Fund and will be. in addition to Plaintiff" S Individual Settlement Payment paid pursuant 

to the. Settlement Agreement. The. Settlement Administrator (and not Cal Water) shall issue an 

IRS- .Form 1099 to Plaintiff reflecting his Class Representative. Enhancement Payment-g Plaintiff 

agrees to assume sole. responsibility of remitting to the Internal. Revenue Service, the California 

Franchise Tax Board, and any other relevanttaxing authority the amounts requiredby law, if any, 

from his Class Representative Enhancement Payment, In addition, Plaintiff shall hold Cal Water. 

and the Released. Parties harmless and indemnify and defend Cal Water and the Released Parties 

for all. taxes, interest, penalties, and costs incurred by Cal Water or the Released Parties by any 

reason of. any claims relating to their non-withholding of taxes from the. Class Representative 

Enhancement Payment. Should the Court approve the Class Representative Enhancement 

Payment to Plaintiff in an amount thatis less than that set forth above, the difference between the 

IeSSer amount approved by the. COurt and "the amount allocated. to the Enhancement Award Will. 

remain part of the Net Settlement Amoi’mt for distribution to the. Settlement Class Members. 

44-. Settlement AdminiStr'atiOn Costs. The Settlement Administrator will be paid for 

the reasonable costs it incurs for purposes of administering the Settlement and. distributing 

payments from the Gross Settlement- Fund. These costs, which “will be paid. from the Gross 

Settlement Fund, will include, inter alia, the required. tax. reporting on. the Individual Settlement 

Payments, the" issuing and collection of 1:099 and W—Z IRS Forms, distributing Class Notices , 

processing Requests for Exclusion, Notices .of Objection, and. Workweek Disputes, performing 

single skip trace on Class Notices returned as undeliverable, calculating and distributing from the 

Gross Settlement Fund, all Individual. Settlement Payments, PAGA Settlement Amount, Class 

Representative Enhancement Payment, and. Attorneys’ Fees and Costs, :andproviding necessary 

reports and declarations, among other tasks set forth in this Agreement- 

45. PAGA Settlement. Amount. Subject to Court approval, the Parties agree that: the 

amount of One Hundred Seventy—Five Thousand Dollars (S 175,000) from. the Gross Settlement 

Fund will. be allocated from the Total Settlement Amount to penalties under thePrivate Attorneys 

General Act, California Labor Code Section 2698-, et- seq. (i..e., PA’GA Payment). Pursuant to. 



PAGA, Seventy-Five- Percent (75 %), or One Hundred Thirty-One. Thousand Two Hundred Fifty 

Dollars ($131,250.00), of this sum will be paid to the LWDA-and. Twenty—Five Percent (25 %’), or 

Forty-Three Thousand S‘eVen. Hundred Fifty Dollars ($43,750.00), Will be distributed to Allegedly 

Aggrieved Employees on a pro rota basis. based on the number of WOrkWeeks during the .PAGA 

Period. 

46.- Mividual Settlement Payment Calculations. Settlement Class Members do not: 

need to submit a claim to participate and receive their Individual Settlement Payment. Individual 

Settlement Payments will be calculated and apportioned from. the Net Settlement Amount. to 

Settlement Class. Members on a'pro rata basis depending on. the-number of 'Workweeks in which a, 

Settlement Class Member performed. at least. one day of work for Cal 'Water, as follows: 

a. After Preliminary Approval, the Settlement Administrator will determine 

the Workweeks of each Settlement Class Member}, divide the Net Settlement Amount by the 

Wo‘rkweeks of all Settlement Class Members to yield the “Estimated Workweek Value,"" and 

multiply each Settlement Class Member’s individual Workweeks by the. Estimated Workweek 

Value to yield his or her estimated Individual Settlement- P'ayment that he or she may be eligible 

to receive under the Settlement. 

b. After "Final Approval, the Settlement Administrator will divide the final Net 

Settlement. Amount by the Workweeks of all Settlement Class Members to yield the “Final 

Workwee'k Value,” and multiply each Settlement" Class. .Member’s individual 'Workweeks by 

the Final Workweek Value to yield his or‘her Individual Settlement Payment. 

47. Individual PAGA Payment Calculations. Individual PAGA Payments will. be 

calculated and apportioned from the 25% portion of the PAGA Settlement Amount. allocated to 

Allegedly Aggrie'ved Employees on a pro rata basis depending on the number of Workweek's in 

"Which an Allegedly Aggriev'ed Employee. performed at least one day of work for Cal Water in the 

same manner .as the-Individual Settlement Payment. Allegedly Aggrieved Employees do not need. 

to submit ‘a claim to participate in the PAGA portion of the Settlement and also may not opt out or- 

obj ect to the resolution of the PAGA claim. 



48. No Credit T0ward Benefit Plans. The Individual Settlement Payments. made .to 

Participating Settlement Class Members and Individual PAGA Payments made to Allegedly 

Aggrigeved. Employees under this Settlement, as well as any. other payments made pursuant to this 

Settlement, will not be. utilized to calculate any additional benefits under any'benefit plans to which 

any Settlement Class Members maybe eligible, including, butnot limited to, profit—sharing plans, 

bonus plans, 401(k) plans, stock purchase plans, vacation. plans, sick leave plans, paidtime off or 

PTO plans,- and any other benefit plan. Rather, it is the Parties" intention that this Settlement. 

Agreement will not affect any rights,- contributions, or amounts to which any Settlement Class 

Members, maybe "entitled under-any benefit plans. For the avoidance of doubt, no Settlement Class- 

Member shall be entitled. to any additional right, contribution, or amount under any benefit plan as 

a result of this Settlement or payments made hereunder. 

49. Administration. Process. The Parties agree to cooperate in the administration of the 

Settlement and to. make all reasonable effOrts to control and minimize the costs and expenses 

incurred in the administration of the Settlement. 

50. Notice‘to Labor and Workforce Development Agency. Class Counsel. will notify 

the LWDiA of entry of the Court’s order granting Preliminary Approval consistent with this, 

Agreement and Labor Code Seetions 26_99(l)(2)—(3). 

5.1. Preparation“ of the Class List. Within fifteen (1.5 ) business days of- the entry of the 

Court’s order" granting Preliminary Approval, Cal 'Water will provide the confidential Class List 

to the Settlement Administrator. Within fifteen ('15) calendar days after the RespOnsie Deadline, 

the Settlement Administrator will provide to counsel for Cal Water and Class Counsel the list of 

Participating Settlement Class Members, which, unless the Court orders otherwise, shall exclude 

individuals Who filed a timely Request .for EXclusion. The Settlement Administrator shall not 

provide social security numbers or Contact information with this list. 

52. lN'otiee by First-Class U.S. Mail. 

Prior to mailing the Class Notice, the Settlement Administrator will perform a search based 

on the National Change of Address Database or any other similar-services available for information 



to update. and correct for any known or identifiable address Changes. Within fifteen (15) calendar 

days after receiving the Class List from Cal Water, the Settlement Administrator will. mail a Class 

Notice to all Settlement Class “Members Via regular First—Class US. Mail, using the most. current, 

known mailing addresses identified by the Settlement Administrator. 

53. Non—Deliverable Class Notices. Any Class Notices. returned to the Settlement 

Administrator as non—deliverable on or before the Response Deadline will be sent, promptly via 

regular First—Class US. Mail within. five (5) calendar days of receipt to the ferwarding address 

affixed thereto and the Settlement Admihi-stratbr will indicate the date of s'uCh' remailing‘ on the 

Class Notice. If no forWarding address is provided, the Settlement Administrator will promptly 

attempt to determine the correct address usinga-skip-trace or other search using'the name, address, 

and/or Social Security number of the Settlement Class Member involved, and Will then perform a 

single” re-mailing within five (5) calendar days of “receipt. Settlement Class Members will have 

until the later of fifteen (15) calendar days “from the date of the re—mailing or the Response 

Deadline, to submit a Notice of Objection, Request for Exclusion, or WOIkweeks Dispute. 

54-. Class Notices. All Settlement Class Members will be: mailed a Class Notice . Each 

Class Notice. will provide: (i) information regarding the nature ofthe Action; (ii) a summary of 

the Settlement Agreement’s principal terms; (iii) the Settlement Class definition; (iv) the total 

number of Workweeks each respective Settlement Class Member worked ”for-Cal Water during the 

Class Period; (v) each Settlement Class Member’s estimated Individual Settlement. Payment and 

the “formula for. calculating Individual Settlement. Payments; (vi) the total number of Workweeks 

each respective Allegedly A-ggrieved .EmpIOyee" worked for Cal Water during the PAGA Period; 

(vii) eaCh Allegedly Aggrieved Employee’s estimated Individual 'PAGA Payment and the formula 

for calculating Individual PAGA Payments; (viii) the dates which. comprise the Class Period, the 

PAGA Period, and the Release Period; (ixj') instructions on how to submit Requests for Exclusion 

or Notices of Objection or Workweeks- Disputes; (x) the deadlines by which the "Settlement Class 

Member must. postmarkRequests for Exclusion, Notices of‘Objection, and 'Work‘weeks Disputes; 

(xi) the claims to be released; and (xii) the Settlement Administrator’s contact information, 



including the website address where the electronic. versions of the materials in, the Class Notice 

will be available. The Parties" propoSed -C1assNo_tice is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

55'. Posting of. Settlement Agreement on SettlementAdministrator’s Website. Within 

ten ('10) calendar days of entry of the order. granting Preliminary Approval, the. Settlement; 

Administrator shall post the Settlement Agreement and any other Court-approved forms to its 

website.- 

56'. Dispute Regarding Workweeks. Settlement Class Members will have an. 

opportunity to dispute the number of ' Workweeks which they have been credited, as reflected in 

their Class Notices. In order to dispute the number of .credited Workweeks on record, Settlement 

ClaSS- Members must submit a timely and valid Workweeks Dispute to "the. Settlement 

Administrator that: (i) contains the case name and number of the Action; (ii) is signed by the 

Settlement C1aSs. Member; (iii) contains the full name, address, telephone number, and theflast four 

digits of the Social. Security Number of the disputing Settlement Class Member; (iv) clearly states 

that the Settlement Class Member; disputes the number. of Workwee'ks during- the Class Period 

and/ or PAGA Period. credited. to him .or her and What he or she Contends is the correct number- to 

be credited to him or her; (v) includes information and/or attaChes documentation demonstrating 

that the number of Workweeks that he or she contends should be credited to. him or her are correct; 

and. (Vi) is returned by mail to the, Settlement Administrator at the specified address, postmarked 

on or'before the Response Deadline. The date of the postmark on the return- mailing envelope on 

the submission will be the exclusive means- to determine Whether a W'orkweeks Dispute. has been 

timely submitted. Settlement Class Members may produce evidence to the Settlement 

Administrator showing that such information is inaccurate-by- the ReSponse'Deadline. Cal Water’s 

records will be presumed correct, but the Settlement Administrator will evaluate the evidenCe 

submitted. by the. Settlement Class Member and. will make the final decision. as. to the merits of the 

dispute. If a Settlement Class Member produced information and/or documents that contradict Cal 

Water’s records, the Settlement Administrator will evaluate the materials submitted by the 

Settlement ClassMember and the Settlement Administrator will resolve and. determine the number 



of "eligible Workweeks that the: disputing Settlement Class Member shouldbe credited with. under 

the. Settlement. All disputes will be decided by the Settlement Administrator within fifteen (‘15) 

calendar days of the Response- Deadline. 

57. Request for Exclusion Procedures. Any Settlement Class, Member wishing to opt 

out “of the Class. Settlement must Sign. and mail a Written Request for Exdusion to-the Settlement 

Administrator by the; Response Deadline. In the case .ofRequests for Exclusion that are mailed'to 

the Settlement Administrator, the postmarkdate will be the exclusive means to determine whether 

a Request for Exclusion has been timely submitted. The Settlement Administrator will certify 

jointly to Class Counsel and Defendant’s. Counsel the Requests for ExcluSion‘ that were timely 

submitted. Consistent with Califomia law, Allegedly Aggrie'ved EmplOyees may not opt out. of 

the PAGA Settlement, Any Settlement Class Member who submits a timely and valid Request. for 

Exclusion is prohibited from making. any obj ectionto the Settlement. A. Settlement Class Member 

who does not submit atimely‘ and. valid Request for Exclusion will be deemed a Settlement Class 

Member and will be bound by all terms of the Settlement and any judgment that may be entered. 

by the Court if the Settlement, is granted Final Approval by the Court. Allegedly Aggri‘eved 

Employees will still receive an Individual PAGA Payment representing their portion of‘the PAGA 

Settlement Amount. and will be bound to the PAGA Settlement and will release the Released 

'PAGA Claims irrespective of whether they submit. a Request for Exclusion. All signatories and 

their counsel must. not encourage opt—outs. The Parties. specifically agree not to solicit opt—cuts, 

directly or indirectly, through any means. Objective statements to Settlement Class Members who. 

call Class Counsel with inquiries regarding the Settlement Agreement, or the exercise of Class 

Counsel., 3. ethical obligations, shall not be deemed a violation of the prohibitions contained herein. 

5'8. Defective Submissions. If a Settlement Class Member’s Request, for Exclusion 'is 

defective as to the requirements listed herein, that. Settlement Class. Member will be given an 

opportunity to. cure the defect(s). The Settlement. Administrator will mail. the Settlement Class- 

Member a cure letter within three (3) business days- of receiving the c‘defective submission to advise 

the Settlement. Class Member that his or her submission is defective and that the. defect must be 



cured. to render “the Request” for EXClusionfvalid. "The Settlement. Class Member will, have until. the. 

later of (i) the Response Deadline: 0r (ii) ten (10) calendar days {tom the date of the cure letter to. 

postmark a revised Request for'Exclujsion'. "If the revised Request for ”Exclusion is not postmarked 

within that period, 'it will be“ deemed untimely. 

59. Cancellation of Settlement Agreement. Within. fourteen ('14) calendar days of the 

Response Deadline, as defined in the Court’s Order granting Preliminary Approval of the 

Settlement, Cal Water Will have the option, in its sole discretion, to void the. Settlement Agreement: 

in its entirety if ten percent ”(10%) or more of all individuals eligible to become: members of" the- 

Settlement. Class submit timely and. validRequests for'Exclusion or are otherwise- deemed by the 

Courtnot to be bound by the Settlement. If Cal Water exercises this option, "it Shall be responsible. 

fer all. Settlement Administration Costs incurred to the date of cancellation. 

60.. Releases. 

3. Release of Classflims bv Settlement Class Members. The Parties agree 

that upon the. EffectiVe Date and Defendant’s full funding of the Gross Settlement 

Fund, in e'Xchang'e for the consideration provided by this Settlement Agreement, 

Plaintiff and all Participating Settlement Class Members, will be deemed. to have 

fully, finally, and fOrever released, settled, compromised, relinquished, and 

discharged any and all claims against the Released Parties for the Released ”Class 

Claims, as fully described in paragraph 27., arising during the Release Period. 

13'. Release of PAGA Claims by Allegedly” .Aggr‘ ieved Employees. The. Parties 

agree that upon the Effective Date and Defendant’s full fimding of the Gross 

Settlement. Fund, in exchange- for the consideration provided by this Settlement. 

Agreement, Plaintiff and all Allegedly Aggrieved Employees, will be deemed to - 

have fiilly, finally, .and forever” releaSed,- settled, comprOmi’Sed, relinquished, and. 



discharged any and all claims against the Released Parties for the Released PAGA 

Claims, as fully described in paragraph28, arising during the PAGA. Period. 

c. Release of Claims by Plaintiff. Upon the Effective Date and Defendant’s 

full funding of the Gross Settlement Fund, in addition to the claims being released 

by all Participating Settlement Class Members and, Allegedly Aggrieved 

Employees, Plaintiff Will fully, finally, and forever release and discharge the 

Released Parties, to the filliest extent permitted by law, of and from any and all. 

claims, known and unknown, asserted and not asserted, which Plaintiff has or may 

have against the Released Parties based in any way on, or otherW’ise related. to or 

arising from, his. employment with Cal Water as of the date of execution of this 

Settlement Agreement. The releases include, but are not limited to, all disputes 

relating to or arising out of any state, local, or federal statute, ordinance, regulation, 

Order, or common law, including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights 

Act .of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C-. §'§ 2000(e), et seq; the Civil Rights Act of 

1866, as amended, 42 U'.S.C. §§ 1981, et seq.; the Equal Pay Act, as amended, 29 

U.S.C. ‘§ 206(d); the Fair Labor Standards Act. of 1939, as amended, 29 U..S.C. §§ 

201, e: seq. and Code of Federal Regulations; the-Orders of the California Industrial 

Welfare Commission regulating wages, hours and working conditions; the 

California Fair Employment & Housing Act, as. amended, Cal. Govt. Code. f§ §. 

12900, et saga; the California Family Rights Act of 1991., as amended; Cal. Govt. 

Code § 12945.2; the California Unruh Civil Rights Act, as amended, Cal. Civ. Code 

§Z§ 51, et seq.; “the California. Labor COde (including any claim for civil penalties 

under the California Labor Code Private Attorneys General Act); the California 

Government Code; Article 1 of the ”California Constitution; the: Rehabilitation Act 

of 1973, as amended, 29 U.-S.C. -§§ 701 et seq; the Americans with Disabilities Act 

of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12100, etseq; the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, 

29 U.S.C. §§ 2601, et seq. and any state law equivalent; the Employee Retirement 



Income Security Act of 1974, 2.9 U.S.C. §§ 1001, .et seq; the National Labor 

Relations Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §~§i 151, et seq. ;. California Business and 

Professions Code §.§ 17200, et seq; other statutory and. common law claims; 

statutory-or common law rights to .attorneys’ fees and costs, penalties/fines, and/or 

punitive damages; any action based on contract, quasi-contract, quantum meruit, 

implied contraCt, tort,- wrongful or Constructive. discharge, breach of “the covenant. 

of good faith and fair dealing, defamation, libel, slander, immigration issues, 

infliction of emotional, distress, negligence, assault, battery, conspir’aCy, 

harassment, retaliation, discrimination on any'basis prohibited by statute or public. 

policy, conversion, any interference with business opportunity or with contract. or 

based. upon any othertheory; and/or similar causes of action. Upon the execution 

of the Settlement Agreement, to the extent allowed by California law, the Plaintiff 

waives all rights and benefits afforded bysection .1542 of the California Civil Code- 

as to any Released Claims. Section 1542 provides: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES. NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS 

THAT THE CREDITOR OR RELEASING’ PARTY DOES NOT 

KNOW OR SUSPECT'TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT 

THE TIME. -OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF 

KNOWN ,‘BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY 

AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBT-OR 

OR RELEASED PARTY. 

Pl'aintiffvunderstands and agrees that claims or facts in addition to or different from 

those which are now known or believed by him to exist may hereafter be 

discovered. It is Plaintiff’s intention to settle fillly and releaSe all claims he now 

has against the" Released Parties, whether. known or unknown, suspected or 

unsuspected. Notwithstanding the above, the general release by. Plaintiff shall not 



extend to claims for workers" compensation benefits, claims for unemployment 

benefits, or other claims that may not be released by law. 

61. Settlement Terms Bind All. Class Members Who Do Not Opt Out. Any Settlement 

Class Member "who does not affirmatively opt, out. of the Settlement Agreement by submitting a 

timely and Valid Request. for EXClusion (i.e., Participating Settlement Class Members) will, be 

bound by all of its terms, including those pertaining to the Released Claims, as well as any" 

Judgment that may be entered by the Court if it grants final approval to the Settlement. The 

SettlementiAgreement shall constitute, and may he pleaded as, a. complete and total defense to any 

ReleasedClaims currently pending or raised in the. future. AllAllegedly Aggrieved Employees—~— 

regardless of whether they submit a Request for Exclusi'onmshall receive a check "fer their" share 

of the PAGA Settlement .Amount‘when settlement payments are delivered, and they will be bound 

by a release of the-ReleaSed PAGA Claims as Outlined in paragraphs 28' and 60. 

62. Notice of Objection Procedures. To obj cct. to the Settlement. Agreement, a 

Settlement Class Member must mail a valid NotiCe of Objection to the: SettlementAdministrator 

on or before the Response Deadline. The Notice ”of Objection must be signed by the Settlement 

Class. Member and contain all information required by this Settlement. Agreement. The postmark 

date will be deemed the exclusive means fer determining that. the Notice of Objection is timely. 

The Settlement Administrator'willnotify any person from Whom it receives a Notice of Objection 

that is not timely and/or valid if, in fact, such Notice, of Objection is not timely and/or valid. Any 

disputes regarding the timeliness, validity or effectiveness of a Notice of Objection shall be 

decided by the Settlement Administrator. consistent with the terms of this Agreement, and with the 

'Parties’ input, if appropriate. Settlement Class Members who fail to object in the manner specified 

above will be deemed to have waived all Objections to the Settlement. and will. be foreCIOSed from 

making any obj ections, whether by appeal or otherwise, to the Settlement Agreement. Settlement 

Class Members who submit timely Notices of Obj ection may appear at the Final Approval Hearing 

in order to have their objections heard by the Court. If the Court permits, Settlement Class 

'Members who have not submitted a written Notice of Objection in compliance with the Settlement 



Agreement may‘still appear at the Final Approval, Hearing and present their objections. At no time 

will any of the Parties or their counsel seek to solicit or otherwise encourage Settlement Class 

Members to submit written objections to the Settlement Agreement or appeal from the Final. 

Approval. Order and Judgment. Class Counsel will not represent any Settlement Class Members 

with respect to any such objections to this Settlement. 

63'. Certification Reports Regarding Individual Settlement. Payment calculations. The 

Settlement. Administrator will provide Defendant’s Counsel and Class Counsel a weekly report 

that certifies (i) the number of Settlement Class Members who have submitted timely and valid 

Requests ’for Exclusion, or objected to the Settlement, as. provided. in paragraphs 5 7 or 62, (ii) 

whether any Settlement. Class Member has submitted Workweek's Dispute as provided in 

paragraphs 56‘, and (iii) ”the“ number of undeliverable and ‘re—mailed Class Notices. Additionally, 

the Settlement Administrator will immediately notify the Parties when it receives. a request from 

an individual or any other entity regarding exclusion from or inclusion in the Class and provide 

counsel for both Parties with, any updated reports regarding the administration of "the Settlement. 

Agreement as needed or reqtlested, as consistent with the terms of the Settlement Agreement. 

64. Distribution Timing of Individual Settlement Payments. The Settlement 

Administrator will. distribute. the funds in the Gross Settlement. Fund within the time period set. 

forth with respectto each. category of payment. 

a. Individual Settlement Payment and PAGA Settlement Amount: Within ten 

('10) business days of the Funding Date,- the. Settlement Administrator will isSue the 

LWDA Payment to the LWDA, the Individual Settlement Payments to the 

Participating Settlement Class Members, and the Individual’PAGA Payments to the- 

Alleg‘edly Aggrieved Employees. Settlement Class Members and Allegedly 

Aggri‘eved Employees will be. issued their Individual Settlement Payments and 

Individual PAGA Payments by way of a single check. 



b. Attorneys” Fees and Cests and: Within ten (.10) business days of ”the 

Funding Date, the Settlement Administrator- will issue the Attorneys" Fees and 

Costs to Class Counsel in the amounts awarded'by the Court. 

(5. Class RepresentatiVe Enhancement. Payments: Within ten. (10) business 

days of the Funding Date, the Settlement Administrator, will issue the Class 

Representative Enhancement Payment to Plaintiff in the amount awarded. by the 

Court. 

(1. Settlement Administration Costs: Within ten (.10) business days of the- 

Funding Date, the Settlement. Administrator will issue. the Settlement 

Administration. Costs to itself in. the amount awarded by the Court, 

65. Un-cashed Settlement Checks. Individual Settlement. Payment and/or Individual 

PAGA Payment checks will be valid and negotiable for-a period of one hundred and eighty (180) 

calendar days from the date of issuance- of the check. Checks remaining un—cashed. for more than 

one hundred eighty (180) calendar days after issuance will be cancelled and deemed void. Funds 

associated "with such uncashed checks Shall be distributed to the Leadership Counsel for Justice & 

Accountability, as ‘a cy pres” beneficiary as set forth in California Code of CivilProcedure section 

384. The Settlement Administrator shall undertake amended and/or supplemental tax filings and 

reporting, required under applicable local, state, and federal tax laws, that are necessitated due. to 

the cancellation of 'any‘ settlement checks. Settlement Class Members whose settlement checks are 

cancelled. shall, nevertheless, be ”bound by this. Settlement Agreement. The Parties and their 

counsel each represent that. they do not have any significant affiliation. or involvement with the 

propoSed cy pres recipient. Under no Circumstances will any portion of the Gross Settlement Fund 

revert to Defendant. 

66. Certification of Completion. Upon completion of the administration of the 

Settlement, the Settlement Administrator will. provide a written. declaration under oath to certify 

such completion to the Court and counsel for all Parties. 



67, Treatment of Individual Settlement 'Paflnents. For tax purposes, the 

Individual PAGA Payments from the PAG‘A, Settlement Amount will be. treated as 1.00% penalties- 

and will be reported on IRS Form 1099. Individual Settlement Payments will be allocated as 

follows: (i) Forty Percent. (40%) to settlement of wage claims and (ii) Sixty Percent (60%) to 

settlement of claims. for-interest, statutory penalties, and non-wage damages. The portion allocated 

to wages shall be reported on. an IRS .Form W-2 and the portion aIIOCated to interest and penalties 

shall be reported on an IRS Form 1099 by the Settlement. Administrator. The Settlement 

Administrator will withhold the Settlement Class 'Members’ share :of taxes and. withholdings with. 

respect to the wages portion of the Individual Settlement Payments, and issue checks to Settlement 

Class Members for their Individual Settlement; Payments. Participating Settlement. Class- 

Members shall be responsible for-remitting to state and/or federal taxing authorities any- applicable 

other taxes due. Neither this Agreement, nor. any of its attachments, should be. interpreted. to 

contain or censtitute- representations or advice regarding any US. federal or state tax issue. 

Settlement Class Members and Allegedly Aggrieved Employees will be specifically informed that. 

neither Cal Water nor Class Counsel make. any representations regarding the tax implications of 

any amounts paid under this Settlement Agreement and, that if Settlement Class Members or 

Allegedly Aggrieved Employees- have‘ any questions regarding those implications, they can and 

should consult a tax expert.- 

68-. Administration of Taxes by the Settlement Administrator. The Settlement. 

Administrator will be responsible for-issuing to Plaintiff, Participating Settlement Class Members, 

and Class Counsel any W-2, 1099, or other tax forms- as may be required by law for all amounts 

paid pursuant. to this. Settlement. The Settlement Administrator will also be responsible for 

forwarding all Participating Settlement ClaSs Member payroll. taxes and penalties to the 

appropriate government authorities... A11. Settlement C-laSs- Members, including Participating 

Settlement Class Members and Allegedly .Aggrieved Employees, shall be solely and exclusively 

responsible for "remitting to state and/or federal taxing authorities any applicable- :other taxes due, 

except for Cal Water’s payment of the Employer’s Payroll Tax. "Payments, and shall. hold Cal 



Water. and the Released Parties harmless for any taxes, penalties, interest, liabilities, :costs, and 

expenses caused. by any such taxing authority relating in any way to the Allegedly Aggrieved. 

Employees’, Settlement Class Members" and Participating [Settlement Class Members" tax 

treatment. of payments made to them pursuant to this Agreement or failure to timely or properly 

pay any taxes owed on their respective- Individual Settlement Payment. 

§___9_, Tax Liability. Plaintiff, Class Counsel, Cal Water, and Defendant’s Counsel make 

no representations or. warranties as to. the. tax consequences, treatment, or legal effect of the 

payments called for hereunder, 'do not intend anything contained in. this Settlement Agreement. to» 

constitute advice regarding taxes, or taxability, nor shall anything in "this Settlement Agreement be 

relied. on as such. Plaintiff and Participating Settlement Class Members. are not relying on any“ 

statement, representation,- or calculation by Cal Water or by the Settlement Administrator in this 

regard. Plaintiff and Settlement Class. Members understand and agree that, except for Cal. 

Water’s payment of the. Employer‘s Payroll. Tax Payments, Plaintiff and Settlement Class 

Members will be solely responsible for correctly characterizing any compensation. received 

under the settlement. on his/her‘personal. income tax returns and paying any'and all taxes due for 

any and all amounts paid to them under. the settlement. 

70. Circular 230 Disclaimer”. EACH PARTY TO" THIS SETTLEMENT 

AGREEMENT (F OR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION, THE "‘ACKNOWLEDGING PARTY,” 

AND‘ EACH PARTY TO THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT. OTHER THAN THE 

ACKNOWLEDGING PARTY, .AN “OTHER PARTY”) ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES 

THAT (1) NO PROVISION OF THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, AND NO 'WRITTEN 

COMMUNICATION OR. DISCLOSURE BETWEEN OR AMONG THE PARTIES OR THEIR 

ATTORNEYS AND OTHER ADVIS‘ERS, IS OR WAS INTENDED TO BE, NOR WILL ANY 

SUCH COMMUNICATION OR DISCLOSURE CONSTITUTE OR BE CONSTRUED OR. BE 

RELIED UPON AS, TAX ADVICE WITHIN THE- MEANING OF UNITED STATES 

TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR ‘230 (31 CPR PART 10, AS AMENDED); (2) THE 

ACKNOWLEDGIN G PARTY (A) HAS. RELIED EXCLUSIVELY. UPON HIS, HER, OR ITS 



OWN, INDEPENDENT LEGAL AND TAX COUNSEL FOR ADVICE (INCLUDING TAX 

ADVICE). IN CONNECTION WITH THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT, (B). HAS NOT 

ENTERED ’ INTO THIS. SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BASED UPON THE 

RECOMMENDATION OF ANY OTHER PARTY" OR ANY ATTORNEY OR ADVISOR TO 

ANY OT HER. PARTY, AND (C) IS NOT ENTITLED TO RELY UPON ANY 

COMMUNICATION OR DISCLOSURE BY ANY ATTORNEY OR ADVISER TO ANY 

OTHER PARTY TO AVOID ANY TAX PENALTY THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE 

ACKNOWLEDGJNG PARTY; AND (,3) NO ATTORNEY OR ADVISER TO ANY OTHER 

PARTY HAS IMPOSED ANY LIMITATION THAT PROTECTS THE CONFIDENTIALITY 

OF ANY SUCH ATTORNEY’S OR ADVISER’S TAX STRATEGIES (REGARDLESS OF 

ZWHETHER SUCH LIMITATION IS LEGALLY BINDING) UPON DISCLOSURE BY THE 

ACKNOWLEDGING PARTY OF- THE TAX TREATMENT OR TAX STRUCTURE OF ANY 

TRANSACTION,- INCLUDING ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED BY THIS 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT. 

'71. "No Prior Assigments. The Parties and their counsel represent, covenant, and. 

Warrant that they? have not directly or. indirectly assigned, transferred, encumbered, or purported. to 

assign, transfer, or encumber to any person or entity any portion of any liability, claim, demand, 

action, cause. of action or right herein released and discharged. 

‘72. 'Nullification of Settlement Agreement, In the event. that: (i) the Court does not 

finallyapprove the Settlement as provided herein; or (ii) the Settlement does not become final for 

any other reason, then this Settlement Agreement, except as. expressly agreedupon in'wriiting by 

the Parties, will be null and void. Any order. or _ judgment entered by the Court in fitherance of 

this Settlement Agreement will. likewise be treated as void from the beginning, 

73. mam of Settlement Agreement. Either Party will have the right to 
unilaterally terminate this Settlement Agreement. by providing written notice of "its election to do. 

so (f‘Terminatio‘n Notice”) to. all other Parties hereto within ten (10) business days, of any of the 

following occurrences; provided, hOWeve'r, that. the Parties agree to Cooperate. in good faith to 



address any issues the Court raises in connection with issuing. Preliminary and/or Final Approval 

of the settlement: 

at. the COurt rejects, materially modifies, materially :amwds or' changes, or 

declines to issue a Preliminary Approval. Order or a Final Approval Order with 

respect to the Settlement. Agreement and the Parties are not permitted to remedy 

any deficiencies the Com identifies; or 

b. an. appellate court reverses the Final Approval Order, and the Settlement 

Agreement is not reinstated Without material change by the Court; on remand. 

74. Reversion Nunc Pro Tul‘c. If this Settlement Agreement is terminated pursuant to 

its terms, or the Effective Date for any reason does not occur: (a) all Orders certifying the 

Settlement ClaSS fer purposes of effecting this Settlement, and all preliminary and/or final findings 

regarding the Settlement Class, shall be ‘void ab initio and automatically vacated upon notice to 

the Court, (b) the Action shall proceed as though the Settlement Class had never been certified 

pursuantfto this Settlement Agreement and such findings had never been made, (c) the ActiOn shall 

revert mmc pro tune to the procedural status quo as of the date and time immediately before the 

execution of the Settlement Agreement, in accordance with this Settlement Agreement, (d) the 

Settlement Agreement. shall be void and Shall have no force or effect, and no Party shall be bound 

by any of its terms, (e) Defendant shall have no obligation to make- any payments to any Party, 

Settlement: Class Member, or Class Counsel, (f) The Preliminary ApprOVal. Order, Final Appro'Val 

Order and Judgment, including any order certifying the Class, shall be Vacated; (g) the Settlement 

Agreement and. all negotiations, statements, and {proceedings relating thereto shall be without 

prejudice to the rights of any of the Parties, all of whom shall be restored. to their respective 

positions in the Action prior to the execution of the Settlement Agreement;- (h) neither this 

Settlement Agreement, nor any ancillary documents, actions”, statements, or filings. in furtherance 

of ' the Settlement (including all matters associated with the mediation) shall be admissible or 

offered into evidence in the Action or any other action for any purpose whatsoever; and (i) any 



documents generated to bring the Settlement into effect, will be null and void, and. any Order or. 

judgment entered by the Court in filrtherance of this Settlement Agreement will likewise be 

treated as void from the beginning,. The Parties finther agree that, by assentingto the filing of a 

Consolidated Amended Complaint. for purposes of this Settlement only, Cal Water does not; admit 

any facts or waive any defenses. 

75. Preliminarv Approval 'He;arin_g. Plaintiff will promptly obtain a. hearing before the 

Court to request the Preliminary Approval of the Settlement Agreement and the entry of an order: 

(i) conditionally certifying the Settlement Class fer settlement purposes only; (ii). granting 

preliminary approval to the proposed Settlement Agreement; (iii) granting approval of the PAGA 

Settlement Amount; (iv) preliminarily appointing Plaintiff as representative of the class; (v) 

preliminarily appointing ClaSs Counsel as counsel for the. Class; (vi) approving, as to form and. 

content, the Class Notice and directing its: mailing to the Settlement. Class by‘First-Class US. Mail; 

(Vii) approving the manner and. method fer Settlement ”Class Members to request exclusion form 

the Settlement as contained herein and within the Class Notice; (viii). setting a deadline for Class 

Counsel to file an application, fer attorney’s fees and costs. and an application for a Class 

Representative Enhancement Payment for Plaintiff; and (ix) setting a date for a Final Approval 

Hearing. In conjunction with the Preliminary ApprOVal hearing, Plaintiff Will submit this, 

Settlement Agreement, which sets forth the terms. of this Settlement, and will "include’the proposed 

”Class Notice, attached. hereto as. Exhibit A. Class Counsel Will be responsible for drafting all 

doctunents necessary to obtain preliminary approval. Class. Counsel will provide Defendant’s 

Counsel a. draft of the Preliminary Approval. motion, and all supporting documents at least fiVe “(5) 

calendar days befOre the filing deadline. Defendant agrees not to oppose the motion for 

Preliminary Approval consistent With this Settlement Agreement. 

76'. Final Approval Hearing and Entgg‘ ' of Judgm’ ent. Upon. expiration of the deadlines 

to postmark Requests for Exclusion or Notices of Obj ection (and no earlier than one hundred (100) 

calendar days after the date on which Plaintiff files his motion for Preliminary Approval or thirty 

(30) calendar days after the Response Deadline) and with the C0urti's permission, a Final 



Approval/ Settlement Fairness Hearing: will be conducted to determine the Final Approval of the- 

Settlement Agreement along- with the: amounts properly payable for: (i) Individual Settlement. 

Payments; (ii) Individual. PAGA Payments and. the? PAGA Settlement Amount; (iii) the Class- 

Representative Enhancement Payment; (iv) the Attorneys’ Fees and Costs; and (v) all Settlement 

Administration CoStS‘ Class Counsel will provide Defendant’s Counsel a draft of the Final, 

Approval MotiOn at least three (3) calendar days- befOre the fi‘lingj‘deadline, and Defendant agrees 

not to oppose the Final Approval Motion. consistent with this Settlement Agreement. 

"77.. Judgment and Continued Jurisdiction. The Parties will present a propoSed form of 

Judgment to. the Court for its approval, which Class Counsel shall submit, to the Court that (i) 

approves the Settlement Agreement, adjudging-the "terms thereof to be fair, reasonable, adequate, 

and directing consUmmation of its terms and provisions; (ii) certifying the Settlement Class for 

purposes of settlement only; (ii-i) approving Class Counsel’s application for Attorneys’ Fees and. 

Costs; (iv) approving the Class Representative Enhancement Payment; (v) approving the PAGA. 

"S ettlement Amount; (vi) approving the SettlementAdministra'tor’s fees fiorn the Gross Settlement 

Amount; (vii) setting a date when the Settlement Administrator shall report to the Court the 

completion of the distribution process and the total amount that was actually paid to the 

Settlement Class Members; (vi—ii) directing Cal Water to fund all amounts. due under the 

Settlement Agreement. and ordered. by the Court, in accordance with the Settlement Agreement; 

and (ix) entering judgment in this- Action, while maintaining continuing jurisdiction, "in 

conformity with California Rules of Court 3.769 and the Settlement. Agreement, whereby all _ 

Allegedly Aggrieved Employees will. release the Released Parties of the Released PAGA Claims, 

and all Participating Settlement Class Members will release the Released Parties of the 'ReleaSed. 

Class Claims. As required by California Rule of COur't 3.769(h), after entry of the Judgment, the 

Court ”will have continuing jurisdiction solely for purposes of addressing: (i) the interpretation and. 

enforcement of the terms of the- Settlement; (ii) Settlement administration matters; and (iii) such 

post—Judgment matters as. may be appropriate under court rules or, asset forth in this Settlement, 

Agreement. 



78'. 

79. 

Older Workers’ Benefit Protection Act Waiver. 

a. Plaintiff specifically intends. that the claims. "he is releasing herein include 

any claims that Plaintiff may have under-the Age Discrimination in Employment 

Act of 1967., as amended by the Older Workers” Benefit Protection Act of “ 1990. 

b. Plaintiff is advisedto consult with. his counsel before signing this Settlement 

Agreement becauSe Plaintiff is permanently giving 'up significant legal rights. 

Plaintiff acknowledges that he has been so advised. 

0. Plaintiff acknowledges. that he has been given. at least twenty—one (21') 

calendar days to execute and return this Settlement. Agreement and has been, 

advised that, after he executes this Settlement Agreement, Plaintiff has seven (7) 

calendar days to reconsiderand revoke the Settlement Agreement, recognizing that 

Plaintiff Will not be provided anything underthis Settlement Agreement until at 

least that seven (7)—,day revOCation period has expired. The general release will, 

then become. 'effeCti'Ve on the eighth (Sth') calendar day after it is signed, provided 

that Plaintiff does- not revoke it. 

(1. In order to ‘effectiVely revoke. this general release, the Parties agree that 

Plaintiff must. provide written notice; of such revocation Within seven (’7) calendar- 

days after Plaintiff executes this Settlement Agreement. to counsel for Cal ”Water, 

Catherine A. Conway and Cynthia Chen, .McTernan, via email to 

cc.onway@gibsondunn.com and. :cmcternan@gibsondunn.com. 

Exhibits Incorporated by Reference. The terms of this Settlement Agreement 

include the terms set forth. in any attached exhibits, which are incorporated by this reference as 

though, fully set forthherein, Any eXhibits‘ .to this Settlement Agreement-are an integral part of the: 

Settlement. 

'80. Entire Agreement. This Settlement-Agreement and any attached exhibits constitute 

the: entirety of the Parties" settlement terms and, should this Settlement Agreement receive Final 

Approval, its terms will supersede- all. prior written or oral agreements between the PartieS. The 



Parties expressly recognize California Civil Code § 1625 and California Code of Civil Procedure 

§ 1856(a), which provide that a written agreement is to be construed. according to its terms and 

may'not: be varied or contradicted by extrinsic evidence, and. the Parties agree that no such extrinsic 

“oral or written representatiOns 0r terms will modify, Vary or contradict. the terms of this Settlement 

Agreement. 

81. Amendment or Modification. Prior to the. filing of the motion for preliminary 

approval of the Settlement, the. Parties may not amend or modify any provision of this Settlement 

Agreement except by written agreement signed by counsel for all Parties. After the filing of the 

motion for preliminary approval. of the Settlement, the .Parties' may not amend or modify any- 

provision of the Settlement Agreement. exCept'by Written agreement signed'by counsel for all off 

the Parties and subj ect. to Court appmval. A waiver 0r amendment of any provision not constitute- 

-a.waiver of any other provision- 

82. Authorization to Enter into Settlement Agreement. Counsel for all Parties warrant 

and represent they are e'xpreSsli'y authorized by the Parties Whom they represent to negotiate this 

Settlement Agreement and to take all apprOpriate action required or permitted to be taken by such. 

Parties pursuant to this Settlement Agreement to effectuate its terms and to. execute any other 

dOCuments required to effectuate the. terms of this Settlement Agreement. The Parties and their 

counsel will cooperate with each other and use their best efforts to effect the implementation of 

the Settlement. If the. Parties are. unable"; to reach agreement on the form or content of any document 

needed to implement. the Settlement, or on any supplemental provisions that may become 

necessary to effectuate the. terms of this Settlement, the Parties may seek the assistance of the Court 

to resolve such disagreement. 

8'3. Signatories. It is agreed. that because the members of the Settlement Class are {so 

numerous, it is impossible or impractical to have each Settlement Class Member execute this 

Settlement Agreement. The Class Notice will advise all Settlement Class Members of the binding 

nature of the release as to the Settlement Class Members, and the release shall have the. same farce 

and effect as if this. Settlement Agreement were executed by each. Settlement Class Member. 



84.. Binding on. Successors and Assigns. This Settlement Agreement will be binding 

upon, and inure to the benefit. of, the- successors or assigns of the Parties hereto, as previously 

defined. 

:85. California Law Govems. All terms of this Settlement. Agreement and exhibits 

hereto will be governed by- and interpreted according to the laws of the State of California. 

86. EXecution and Counterparts. This Settlement Agreement is subj ect to'the execution 

of all Parties. The. Settlement Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. All 

executed counterparts and each ofthem, including facsimile, electronic, and scanned copies of the 

signature-page, will be deemed to be one and. the same instrument. 

'87. fiknowledgement that the “Settlement Is Fair and. Reasonable. The Parties believe 

this Settlement. Agreement is a fair, adequate, and reasonable settlement of the Action and have 

arrived at this Settlement after arm’s-length negotiations and in the context of adversarial 

litigation, taking into. account. all relevant factors, present. and potential. The Parties further 

acknowledge that they are each- represented by competent counsel and. that they have had an. 

opportunity to censult' with their connSel regarding the fairness and reasonableness of this 

Settlement. In addition, the Mediator may execute a declaration Supporting the Settlement and the 

reasonableness of the Settlement and the Court may, in its discretion, contact the Mediator to 

discuss the Settlement and whether the Settlement is objectively fair and reasonable. 

88.. Invalidity of Any Provismn. If the Court indicates thatit believes that aprovision 

of this Settlement Agreement may be invalid, the parties will attempt to amend the provision. so 

that it is consistent with the material terms of the Settlement. Agreement and also. valid and 

enforceable under applicable precedents so as to define allpr-ovisions of‘this Settlement Agreement 

valid and enforceable. 

89.. Plaintiff s Waiver of Ri‘ t, to Be Excluded. Plaintiff agrees to signjthis Settlement 

Agreement and, by signing "this Settlement. Agreement, is hereby bound by the terms herein. 

90. Non-Admission .of Liability. . The Parties enter into this Settlement Agreement to 

resolve the; dispute that has. arisen between them and to avoid the burden, eXpense, and risk. "of 



continued litigation. In entering into this Settlement, Cal Water does not: admit, andrspeici‘fi'cally 

denies, that it violated any federal, State, or local law; viOIated any regulations or guidelines 

promulgated pursuant to any statute or any other applicable laws, regulations, or legal 

requirements; breached any contract; violated or breached. any duty; engaged in any 

misrepresentation or deception; or engaged. in any Other- unlawful conduct with respect to its 

employees. Neither this Settlement; Agreement, nor any of its terms or- pr0visions, nor any of the 

negotiations .connected with it, will be construed as an admission or concession by Cal Water of 

any such violations or failures. to. comply with any applicable law. Except as necessary in a 

proceeding to enforce the terms of this Settlement, this Settlement Agreement. and its: terms and. 

provisions will not be offered or received as evidence in any action or proceeding: to establish any 

liability or admission on the part of Cal Water or to establish the existence of any condition 

constituting a violation of, or anon—compliance with, federal, state, local, or other applicable law. 

91. Captions. The captions and paragraph numbers in this Settlement Agreement are 

inserted for the reader’s convenience, and. in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope 

or intent of the provisions of this Settlement Agreement. 

92.. Media Restrictions. The Parties and their counsel agree that they will not issue any 

press releases or initiate any contact with the media about the fact, amount, or terms of the 

Settlement. Unless "required by applicable law, neither the Plaintiff nor Class Counsel shall 

publicize the terms of this Settlement Agreement in any medium, or initiate-or issue any press 

release. or have any communications to the press or media. concerning the Action, the Settlement 

of the Action, and/or this: Settlement Agreement, except as posted by the Settlement Administrator 

as ordered by the COurt. Class Counsel shall not include, and shall affirmatively remove, any 

reference to any of the foregoing subjects in any advertising, mass mailing, website, or other 

communication. Nothing herein will restrict Class ,CounSel from including publicly available 

information regarding this Settlement in future judicial submissions regarding Class Counselis 

qualifications and experience. If counsel for either Party receives an. inquiryaboutxthe Settlement. 

from the media, counsel may respond only after the. motion for Preliminary Approval has been 



filed and only by confirming the terms of the Settlement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing 

will prevent Class Counsel. from communiCating confidentially with Settlement Class Members as 

necessary to fulfill their obligations as Class Counsel. Plaintiff and Class Counsel will undertake 

any disclosures required. to be made to the. LWDA in. conformity with PAGA. 

93.. Interim Stay of Proceedings. The“ Parties agree to hold. in abeyance all proceedings 

in the Action, including with respect to California Code of Civil. Procedure section 583.310., except- 

such proceedings necessary to implement and complete the Settlement Agreement, pending the 

Final Approval hearing to be conducted by the Court. 

94. Confirmatory Discovery. If necessary, Defendant and Defendant’s counsel shall 

cooperate with Plaintiff and'his- counsel with respect to. confirmatory discovery. 

‘95.. Myer. No waiver of any condition or covenant contained in this Settlement 

Agreement or failure to exercise a right. or remedy by any of the Parties hereto will be considered 

to imply or constitute a further waiver by such party of the same or any other condition, covenant, 

right, or remedy. 

96. Enforcement Actions. In. the event that one or more. of the Parties institutes any 

legal action or other proceeding against any‘other Party or-Parties to enforce the provisions of "this 

Settlement or to declare rights and/0r obligatiOns Under this Settlement, the successful Party or 

Parties Willbe entitled to recover from the unsuccessful Party or Parties reasonable. attorneys’ fees 

and costs, including expert Witness fees incur-red in connection with any enforcement actions. 

'97.- Disputes Regarding Settlement Agreement. In the .event'that there are: any disputes 

arising. out of or. relating to this Settlement Agreement, any such dispute will be submitted to 

mediator J effi'ey Krivis, Esq. If the Parties. are unable to resolve any disputes with J effrey Krivis, 

they will present the issue to the Honorable Sunil .B. Kulkarni, whose decision will bind the Parties. 

98.. Mutual Preparation. The. Parties have had a full opportunity to negotiate the terms 

and conditions of this Settlement Agreement. Accordingly, this Settlement Agreement. will not be 

construed more strictly against one party than another merely by virtue of the fact—that itamay have 

been prepared by connSel fOr one of the Parties, it being recognized that, because of the arm’s— 



length negotiatiOns between the- Parties, all Parties have contributed to the preparation of this 

S ettlement Agreement. 

99. Representation bv Counsel. The Parties acknowledge that they have been 

represented 'by counsel throughout all negotiations that preceded the execution of this Settlement 

Agreement, and that" this Settlement. Agreement has been executed. with the advice of counsel, and 

revieWed in full. Further, Plaintiff and Class Counsel "warrant and represent that there are no liens 

on the Settlement Agreement. 

100. Notices. All notices, demands, and other communications to be provided 

concerning this Settlement Agreement shall be in. writing and delivered by overnightjmail at the 

addresses set for. below, or such other addresses as either Party may designate in writing from 

time to time: 

To Plaintiff and Class Counsel; To Defendant: 

Edwin Aiwazian, Esq. Catherine Conway, Esq. 
Arby Aiwazian, Esq. Cynthia. Chen McTernan, Esq. 
Joanna Ghosh, Esq. GIBSON, DUNN &. CRUTCHERLLP 
Brian J. St. John, Esq. 333 South Grand Avenue 
LAWYERS for JUSTICE, PC Los Angeles, California 90071 
410 West Arden Avenue, Suite 203. cc_onway@gibsOndunn.COm 
Glendale, Califomia 91,203 cmeternan@gibsondunn.com 
edwin@calljustice.com 

101 . All Terms subject to Final Court Approval. All amounts and procedures described 

in this Settlement Agreement herein will be subject to final Court approval. 

102. Final JUdgment. Plaintiff and Class Counsel shall provide the Settlement 

Administrator with a copy of the Final Judgment once it is entered by the Court, and the Settlement 

Administrator shall post the Final Judgment on its website Within three (3). business days of receipt. 

No individualized notice to the Settlement Class will be required. 

.103 ._ Cooperation and Execution :ofNecessarv- Documents. AllParties and their counsel 

Will cooperate in good faith and their best efferts to implement the Settlement, including and not 



limited to, executing all docUments to the extent reasonably- necessary to effectuate the terms of 

this Settlement Agreement. 

1.04. Binding Agreement. The Parties warrant that they understand and have full 

authority to enter into this Settlement Agreement, and further intend that this Settlement 

Agreement will be fully enforceable and binding on all parties, with ”retention of jurisdiction by 

the Court as provided therein, and agree that it will be admissible and subjeCtrto disclosure in. any 

proceeding- to enforce its terms. 
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Chief ' ncial Officer 

By: 
Ron i) 
Chi f Human Resource fficer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

April 
Dated: Manoh 2_5, 2023 Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP 

Cirifiaaeé 6) W k  

By: kl 
Catherine A. Conway 
Attorneys for Defendant California Water 
Service 
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